# **CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL**

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cabinet Member for Communities** held on Monday, 13th July, 2015 in Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

#### PRESENT

Councillor L Gilbert

**Councillors in attendance**: Councillors S Corcoran, J Rhodes and Councillors G Williams

#### Officers in attendance

Tracey Bettaney – Principal Manager Regulatory Services and Health Kim Evans – Licensing Team Leader Cherry Foreman- Democratic Services Officer

#### 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

#### 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

#### 3 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

Donald Stennett, supported by Christopher Hall, attended the meeting and spoke in respect of item 4 (the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares). He would have preferred the increase to be applied to the whole of the journey rather than the first mile, nor did he wish to see the Sunday night and Bank Holiday rates changed; he questioned why other areas were not brought in line with Macclesfield rather than visa versa. The Licensing Team Leader responded that that this was the first stage in a phased operation; an earlier consultation exercise had not achieved agreement on these points.

## 4 PEST CONTROL SERVICE REVIEW

During discussion of this item Councillor Steve Hogben declared a personal interest by virtue of his position as Director on the Board of ANSA.

It was reported that the Pest Control Service had experienced ongoing uncertainty about its future for several years and had, as a result, been maintained in its historical delivery model which had allowed neither development nor efficiency savings to be achieved as a result of which the service continued to operate at a cost to the council.

The financial planning process for 2015-2016 and beyond had determined that a saving of  $\pounds$ 60K would be achieved through the removal of the subsidy for delivery of the pest control service and the service budget had been reduced to reflect this.

A recent review of Enforcement within Cheshire East recommended that the Pest Control Service should be reviewed to determine whether the council should continue to operate the service or consider alternative delivery options.

This report examined the different delivery options available and in relation to the national picture. Three main options of either maintaining the current service, ceasing the pest control service completely, or of a reduced service delivery, were set out in the report.

In response to a question concerning a possible option of the work being carried out by either a new or existing Alternative Service Delivery Vehicle it was confirmed that this had been investigated as part of a wider review but that it had not been shown to be financially viable.

The Portfolio Holder reviewed the salient points of each of the options, and reported that he had decided upon the reduced service delivery option, for the reasons set out in the report.

## RESOLVED

- 1. That detail in relation to the current provision of pest control services within Cheshire East, and the financial implications of various service delivery models that have been considered as part of a full review of the service, be noted.
- 2. That the proposal for the reduced service delivery model be approved as the most appropriate way forward to meet financial savings and to underline the commitment of Cheshire East Council to the treatment of public health pests.
- 3. That the Principal Manager: Regulatory Services and Health be authorised to implement the reduced service delivery model in conjunction with any necessary consultation with staff, Trade Unions and Human Resources.
- 4. That the Principal Manager: Regulatory Services and Health be authorised to communicate any changes to pest control service delivery to relevant internal and external stakeholders.

## 5 THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE TABLE OF FARES

It was reported that on 5 December 2014 the relevant Cabinet Member, following consultation with the trade and general public, considered proposals to introduce the phased harmonisation of hackney carriage fares across Cheshire East's three zones. At that time it was resolved:

- 1. That phase one of the proposal be implemented;
- 2. That any future proposals for change be subject to full consultation and that the Council be committed to listening to the views of taxi drivers and owners, and local residents;
- 3. That the Licensing Team Leader be authorised to take all necessary action to implement phase one including writing and advertising the statutory public notices;

- 4. That In the event of any objections being received following placement the notices a further Portfolio Holder meeting be arranged to consider them; and
- 5. If no objections are received the table of fares for each zone, having been advertised in accordance with the requirements of Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, will automatically come into force on the date specified in the public notices.

During the week commencing 8 June 2015 a Notice publicising the proposed changes was placed in a newspaper circulating in each of the Council's Hackney Carriage Zones. Additionally, a letter explaining the proposals was sent to each Hackney Carriage vehicle licence holder. The Notices allowed a 21 day period where objections to the proposals could be made and also specified that if no objections were received the changes would take automatic effect on 3 August 2015.

The Portfolio Holder thanked the taxi drivers for their contribution. He reported that, following consideration of the of the responses it was proposed that phase 1 of the proposals be implemented and that, in response to the comments received, it was proposed to add further wording into the Macclesfield and Congleton tables to clarify when the extra charges for Christmas and New Year will apply. The proposed wording was circulated at the meeting and has been added to the website with these minutes.

## RESOLVED

That approval be given for phase one of the proposals to be implemented with changes set out by the Cabinet Member to take effect from 3rd August 2015.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.40 pm

Councillor (none)